
Agenda Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 10/15/13 August 6, 2013 

   
 Margie Barrios Anthony Botelho Robert Rivas Jerry Muenzer Jaime De La Cruz 
 District No. 1 District No. 2 District No. 3 District No. 4 District No. 5 
   Chair  Vice-Chair   
           County Administration Building – Board of Supervisors Chambers, 481 Fourth Street, Hollister, California 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AUGUST 6, 2013 

ACTION MINUTES  
 
     The Board of Supervisors of San Benito County met in the Board Chambers on the above 
date in regular session. Supervisors Botelho, De La Cruz, Rivas, Barrios and Muenzer were 
present. Also present were Interim County Administrative Officer Ray Espinosa, County 
Counsel Matt Granger, and Clerk of the Board Denise Thome. Chairman Botelho presided. 
 
9:00 a.m. CALL TO ORDER: 
a) Supervisor Barrios led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
b) Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, acknowledged Certificate of 

Posting. 
 

c) PRESENTATIONS & RECOGNITIONS: 
Presentation by Judge Sanders on the status of the new Courthouse 
Construction Project. 
     Superior Court Judge Steve Sanders gave an update on the Courthouse 
Construction Project noting that it should be done by the end of October or the 
beginning of November 2013 with first court proceedings late this year, early next 
year. He proceeded to answer questions of the Board. 
 

d)     Public Comment:   
      Kathina Sieto, President of the San Benito Olive Festival invited the Board to 

the first gourmet festival that will be held on Saturday, October 19th at the 
Paicines Ranch. She added that they were partnering with the Community 
Foundation, Historical Society, YMCA and CMAP. 

      Marvin Jones passed out a handout and spoke about the General Plan and 
the distribution of atmospheric CO2. 
 

e) Department Head Announcements:   
     Public Works Administrator Steve Wittry stated that he received 
communication from Cal Trans regarding Hwy. 156 between Hollister and San 
Juan and anticipated the project moving forward for the frontage road. 
     Chairman Botelho stated that he would like to see an agreement in place so 
that all are aware of what is expected at the end of the project. 
     Supervisor De La Cruz felt that long term maintenance expenses needed to 
be considered and not add activities to increase the cost. 

SAN BENITO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 



Agenda Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 10/15/13 August 6, 2013 

     Council of Government Executive Director Lisa Rheinheimer requested the 
Board and staff to take the online survey regarding transportation and how we 
should grow. She explained that the survey was being done by AMBAG and 
could be found at www.movingforwardMB.org. 

 
f) Board Announcements:  
                Supervisor Barrios spoke of the Intergovernmental Committee and the Fire 

Committee along with Chief O’Connor working together to make a partnership 
work. She added that they were looking at a location in North County and the 
possibility for a station in North County appeared to be moving forward in a 
positive way. She reported that they were moving forward with the fiber optic plan 
and there was $95,000 available for the project. 

      Interim County Administrative Officer Ray Espinosa added that it had been 
approved by the Gang of Five. 

      Supervisor Barrios thanked the Youth Alliance for surveying Nash, Tres Pinos 
and McCray roads for the possibility of a traffic grant. 

      Supervisor Muenzer stated that the Fire Committee along with Chief 
O’Connor had negotiated an auto aid agreement with the Pinnacles National 
Park and they were starting initial negotiations with local businesses to house a 
volunteer station in Tres Pinos. 

      Chairman Botelho noted that the fire partnerships with the cities and counties 
is working out. 

      Supervisor De La Cruz spoke of the increased response time and asked the 
Sheriff for a report if the budget has compromised safety. 

      Interim Ray Espinosa stated that they would get that on the agenda in the 
next month. 

      Supervisor Barrios reported that the National Night Out partnership with local 
law enforcement would be at Target at 5:00 p.m. She thanked the Olive Festival 
for the presentation earlier and felt that it was going to be a beautiful event. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
     Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Rivas and seconded by Supervisor De 

La Cruz, approved Consent Agenda items with the exception of items 6 and 16 which 
were pulled for discussion and item 12 which was continued. (Unanimous) 
 
AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER – R. Ross: 
1) Approved contract with the Dept. of Food & Agriculture to provide Light Brown 
 Apple Moth Services for the period of October 1, 2012 through September 20, 
 2013, for a total of $3,454.93. File #1.1 
 
AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER – R. Ross: 
2) Approved contract with the Dept. of Food & Agriculture for Nursery Inspection 
 Program for the period of July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, for a total of 
 $1,162.00. File #1.1 
 
AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER – R. Ross: 
3) Approved contract with the Dept. of Food & Agriculture for Organic Inspections 

for the period of July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014, for a total of $8,940.00. File 
#1.1 

 

http://www.movingforwardmb.org/�


Agenda Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 10/15/13 August 6, 2013 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
4) Confirmed Supervisor Rivas’s nomination of Pat Loe for appointment to the San 
 Benito County Planning Commission representing District 3 effective August 6, 
 2013. File #790.2 
 
CLERK OF THE BOARD – D. Thome: 
5) Approved the action minutes from the December 4, 2012 regular meeting, 

December 11, 2012 special meeting, July 2, 3013 Special Meeting (A.M.), July 2, 
2013 Special Meeting (P.M.)  May 21, 2013 regular meeting and July 23, 2013 
regular meeting.  

 
CLERK/AUDITOR/RECORDER – J. P. Gonzalez: 
6) Review the FY 2012-13 Year End Audit Preparation Instructions and 

Calendar. 
 Pulled for discussion. 

Clerk-Auditor-Recorder Joe Paul Gonzalez explained the matter noting that 
they were already three weeks behind schedule with a goal to finish the whole 
process by December 31st. 

Supervisor Muenzer stated that these deadlines need to be met and they 
needed to catch up on the deadlines to hit the target date of December 31st. 

Chairman Botelho concurred that they needed to maintain the timelines. 
Supervisor De La Cruz asked if what was keeping them from meeting the 

deadlines was outside. 
CAR Gonzalez replied that departments were waiting for state information.  
Supervisor Muenzer asked if other counties were having the same issues with 

vacation time and getting information from the state. 
CAR Gonzalez stated that many counties are much larger than us and have 

more resources. 
Supervisor Muenzer suggested if they were having trouble getting information 

perhaps they should come before the Audit Committee. 
CAR Gonzalez suggested that at the September Audit Committee meeting 

they could take assessment of where we’re at. 
Supervisor Barrios indicated that there was a tremendous amount of work and 

this was not the only deadline departments have. 
Interim CAO Ray Espinosa stated that they were working on the ERP system 

with CAFER in mind which would make it quicker to get reports out of the 
system. 

CAR Gonzalez stated that the dates on the schedule were no longer valid but 
they should be able to comply with the second date. 

Chairman Botelho called for public comment. 
Marty Richman stated that the tracking program was paying off and this part 

of their plan was working well. He suggested putting together a strike team to 
help departments for regular accounting services. File #608 

 
EMERGENCY SERVICES – J. Clark: 
7) Adopted Governing Body Resolution No. 2013-57 authorizing the county 

positions named to  execute for and on behalf of the County of San Benito for 
making application,  filing and obtaining state and federal assistance and funding 
under the State Homeland Security Grant and Emergency Management 
Performance Grant  Programs. File #75.5 



Agenda Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 10/15/13 August 6, 2013 

 
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY – M. Corona: 
8) Approved and adopted the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Individual Training 

Account Agreement Template and authorized the Director of HHSA and/or 
Deputy Director of CSWD to enter into said contracts; and authorize the Deputy 
Director of CSWD to sign all existing ITA Agreements. File #939 

 
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY – M. Corona: 
9) Approved and adopted the Individual Training Account Template for non-WIA 

funded programs effective July 1, 2013; and authorized the Director and/or 
Deputy Director of HHSA to enter on the County’s behalf. File #939 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES – G. Cochran: 
10) Adopted new class specifications for Clerk-Auditor-Recorder-Elections (CARE) 
 Information Systems Deputy and set a salary range 19.4 of the County’s Class 
 Title and Pay Plan. File #630 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES – J. Credico: 
11) Approved letter of Agreement between San Benito County and the San Benito 
 County Institutions Association, effective August 6, 2013 through September 30, 
 2013. File #630 
 
INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT – M. Rose: 
12) Approve a Budget Augmentation of $34,000 from Landfill Contingency; and 

approve the purchase of the Hazmat unit as identified in the Safety Storage 
quote dated July 25, 2013 in an amount not to exceed $34,000. (4/5 vote) 

      This item was continued. 
 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT – R. Campbell: 
13) Approved reciprocal agreement with Monterey County for certain wards 

requiring protective custody. File #510 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – S. Wittry: 
14) Approved the plans, specifications and bid documents for guardrail installation 

at Salinas Grade Road at mile post 2.91 and 3.85 Project No. 2102-707. File #105 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – S. Wittry: 
15) Approved the plans, specifications and bid documents for guardrail installation 

at Fairview and John Smith Roads Project No. 2102-701. File #105 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – S. Wittry: 
16) Approve contract with Hayashi & Wayland Accounting and Consulting, 

LLP. for Public Works accounting services for the period of August 6, 2013 
through June 30, 2014, in an amount not to exceed $32,000. 

 Pulled for discussion. 
      Supervisor Barrios asked if it was a team of C.P.A.s with experience.  
      Public Works Administrator Steve Wittry explained that they had interviewed 

different counties as to what they did and this firm was recommended by 
Monterey County. 

      Supervisor Barrios noted that they gave us a discount. 



Agenda Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 10/15/13 August 6, 2013 

      Supervisor De La Cruz indicated that this was short term to help us out and 
eventually they would have someone in house. 

      Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by Supervisor 
Muenzer, approved contract with Hayashi & Wayland Accounting and 
Consulting, LLP for Public Works accounting services for the period of August 6, 
2013 through June 30, 2014, in an amount not to exceed $32,000. (Unanimous) 
File #105 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – 9:00 a.m. (Or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard)  
 
PUBLIC WORKS – S. Wittry: 
17) Hold a public hearing with regards to the proposed new Property Related 

Fee in County Service Area No. 50 (Dunneville Estates); adopt Resolution 
tabulating protests, and confirming the fee report, fee schedule and fee for 
a new Property Related Fee, imposing the fee on the FY 2013-14 tax roll; 
and taking other related actions. (Continued from July 23, 2013 meeting) 
(Res. No. 2013-58) 

      CSA Coordinator Lynette Redman gave a staff report. 
      Chairman Botelho opened the public hearing. 
      There being no public comment, the Chairman closed the public hearing. 
      Interim Public Works Director Byron Turner asked the Clerk of the Board if 

she had received any protests. 
      Clerk of the Board Denise Thome replied that she had not received any 

protests. 
      Interim Public Works Director Byron Turner asked that 0 protests be added to 

the resolution. 
      Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by Supervisor 

Muenzer, adopted Resolution No. 2013-58 tabulating protests, and 
confirming the fee report, fee schedule and fee for a new Property Related Fee, 
imposing the fee on the FY 2013-14 tax roll; and taking other related actions 
with the addition of 0 protests received to the resolution.(Unanimous) File #CSA 50 

 
REGULAR AGENDA: 
 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT – B. Turner: 
18) Review materials and the scope of work for the completion of the General 

Plan Update and provide direction. 
      Interim Planning Director Byron Turner gave a staff report. He stated that he 

could send out the RFP and come back the first meeting in September and that 
he could include the additional task of implementation. 

      Supervisor De La Cruz stated that he did not want to see a supplement and 
there should be direction not to include the current contractor from the RFP. 

      Interim Planning Director Turner stated that he had no direction to exclude 
them. 

      Supervisor De La Cruz stated to exclude them. 
      Supervisor Barrios did not agree with excluding them noting that there would 

be a schedule of payment and they would not pay any money before the work 
was done. 

      Chairman Botelho indicated that their first consultants failed to provide 
services that they said they would and they put the county on a track of failure. 



Agenda Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 10/15/13 August 6, 2013 

He added that they needed to decide on community planned growth areas. He 
stated that his position was that they would be putting unnecessary bull’s eyes on 
the General Plan and that jeopardizes everything with growth areas identified.  
He stated that they have added to their cost by having those areas identified. 

      Supervisor Rivas asked if the consultant had worked with GPAC. 
      Mr. Turner stated that they were present at all GPAC meetings. 
      Supervisor Rivas commented that GPAC members were discouraged that the 

document did not reflect the work that they did. He asked if there was an option 
to hire someone in house. 

      Mr. Turner replied possibly. 
      Supervisor Rivas agreed with Chairman Botelho that it was a mess. He asked 

if study areas were necessary in the document. 
      Mr. Turner replied that they were not required. 
      Supervisor Muenzer asked if that wasn’t something that came out of GPAC 

and they called them villages. 
      Mr. Turner indicated that they did discuss the concept and they have taken on 

multiple names and the locations have changed as well. 
      Chairman Botelho suggested discussing it that day. 
      County Counsel Matt Granger advised that it was not properly agendized to 

do so. He stated that they could work with the future consultant on it and 
agendize it. 

      Supervisor Barrios did not feel it was fair to discuss communities that day and 
the public needed to know. 

      Supervisor Muenzer suggested agendizing both items, communities and RFP. 
      Chairman Botelho agreed to agendizing as he would like to make a decision 

prior to hiring a consultant. 
      Supervisor De La Cruz stated that once the Board decides it will go back to 

the Planning Commission. 
      Mr. Turner explained that the General Plan would go back to the Planning 

Commission. 
      County Counsel Granger explained that the Planning Commission is only a 

recommendation and not binding to the Board. 
      Supervisor Barrios liked the idea of discussing it with potential contractors. 
      Chairman Botelho called for public comment. 
      Marty Richman felt that if they didn’t do special studies areas there wouldn’t 

be any development. 
      Marvin Jones noted what was required in the General Plan and that a few are 

optional and should have been deleted. 
      Pat Loe stated that the term General Plan speaks for itself and should be kept 

as general as possible. She felt it was important to have discussions now to 
minimize the money spent giving specific instructions.  

      There being no further public comment, the Chairman closed public comment. 
      Chairman Botelho stated that it was not a surrender flag to environmentalists 

and that one of the special study areas has no water. He asked how you defend 
that when it goes to court. He added that he was not against growth but was 
against growth where they didn’t have resources which was common sense. 

      Supervisor Barrios indicated that was why they were special studies areas so 
they can have their own studies and information comes out. 

      Supervisor Muenzer asked if it warranted a special meeting. 



Agenda Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 10/15/13 August 6, 2013 

      Supervisor Barrios felt they should move forward with the agenda item for the 
RFP and Mr. Turner could convey the wishes of the Board. 

      Supervisor Rivas stated that he cared about the environment but was not an 
environmentalist. He indicated that he was being cautious and the ideas came 
from GPAC locations. He concurred with Chairman Botelho that they have roof 
tops coming with development approved.  He added that they had to be picky on 
development coming in. 

      Supervisor Muenzer wanted to push for a special meeting. 
      Chairman Botelho gave direction to staff to set a special meeting to further 

discuss along with special studies areas. File #790 
 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT – B. Turner: 
19) Approve contract with Rincon Consultants, Inc. to prepare EIR for the San 

Juan Oaks project, in an amount not to exceed $265,722; and authorize the 
Planning Director to approve minor contract amendments, authorizing 
additional work within 10% contract contingency amount not to exceed 
$26,572. 

      Interim Planning Director Byron Turner gave a staff report and recommended 
that the Board approve the contract. 

      Chairman Botelho opened public comment. 
      Marty Richman explained that is what special studies do. He indicated that he 

had lived in Hollister since 1996 and expressed offense to Supervisor Rivas’s 
wondering where he lived. He added that he had earned the right to be here. 

      Supervisor Barrios expressed appreciation for the timelines set on it and that 
it was well planned. 

      Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Muenzer and seconded by Supervisor 
Barrios approved contract with Rincon Consultants, Inc. to prepare EIR for the 
San Juan Oaks project, in an amount not to exceed $265,722 and authorized 
the Planning Director to approve minor contract amendments, authorizing 
additional work within 10% contract contingency amount not to exceed $26,572. 
(Unanimous) File #790 

 
The Board adjourned for a break at 11:05 a.m. and reconvened into regular 
session at 11:13 a.m. 

 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – S. Wittry: 
20) Receive presentation from staff regarding courthouse space planning and 

selection of tenants and provide direction to staff. 
      Capital Improvements Project Manager Adam Goldstone gave a PowerPoint 

presentation and spoke of the options. 
      Discussion ensued among Board members regarding the different options. 
      Chairman Botelho called for public comment. 
      Pat Loe asked what was happening with the law library. 
      Chairman Botelho indicated that there was a possibility of consolidation with 

the current library or go with the new courthouse. 
      Supervisor Barrios thought they did not want to take it. 
      Mr. Goldstone stated that it was still under discussion and somehow will be 

accommodated elsewhere. 
      COG Executive Director Lisa Rheinheimer noted that COG’s current lease 

ended the next year on July 31, 2013. 



Agenda Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 10/15/13 August 6, 2013 

      Supervisor De La Cruz chose Option 1. 
      Supervisor Rivas chose Option 1. 
      Supervisor Muenzer chose Option 1.  
      Chairman Botelho stated that the consensus was Option 1. 
      Mr. Goldstone commented that they would need a new name since the 

courthouse was not appropriate anymore. 
      Supervisor Barrios thanked staff. 
      Chairman Botelho noted that direction had been given.  
      File #105.3 
 
 The Board adjourned to lunch at 11:29 a.m. and reconvened into regular session 

at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 The Board adjourned into closed session at 1:02 p.m. and reconvened into 

regular session at 3:17 p.m. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
 
21) Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation. 
 Significant Exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d) of Section 

54956.9: Number of Cases (1) 
 Closed session is authorized by Section 54956.9 (d)(2), (e)(2) 
 On November 19, 2012 the California Supreme Court rendered its decision 

in the case City of Alhambra et.al. vs. County of Los Angeles, et.al 55 Cal. 
4th 707 which resolved an issue about how a county calculates and 
imposes a Property Tax Administration fee (hereinafter “PTAF”) on a city 
for its share of the County’s cost in administering the property tax system. 

 No reportable action was taken. File #235.6 
 
 County Counsel Matt Granger stated that Capital Project Manager Adam 

Goldstone was to be added as an agent negotiator for item #22. 
 
22) Conference with Real Property Negotiator: 
 Property: - Palmtag Ranch (APN 020-170-017), off of Cienega Road, 

Hollister, California 
- Lantis-Ward (APNs 020-170-045 & 020-280-052) at 2100 Cienega 

Rd., Hollister, California 
- San Benito High School (APNs 020-170-043, 059-020-001 & 059-

020-003), off of Nash Rd., Hollister, California 
- TAG Paintball (APN 020-280-050), 2120 San Benito Street, 

Hollister, California 
Agent Negotiator(s): Steve Wittry, Public Works Administrator; Ray 

Espinosa, Interim CAO; Matthew Granger, County Counsel, and 
Shirley Murphy, Deputy County Counsel 

Negotiating Parties: Ron Ross, on behalf of Palmtag Ranch property 
owners; Dave Lantis, on behalf of the Lantis-Ward property 
owners; Michael Robustelli, on behalf of the San Benito High 
School District; and Roland Chick, on behalf of TAG Paintball 

Under Negotiation: price and terms of payment 
Authority: California Government Code section 54956.8 



Agenda Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 10/15/13 August 6, 2013 

No reportable action was taken. File #235.6 
  

23) Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation 
 Subdivisions (a) and (d)(1) of Section 54956.9 
 Name of Case: Purple Cross Rx. et.al. vs. County of San Benito, Superior 

Court of California, County of San Benito, Case No. CU-12-00060 
 No reportable action was taken. File #235.6 
 
24) Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation 
 Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Section 54956.9: 

Number of Cases: (1)  
 No reportable action was taken. File #235.6 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION – 1:00 p.m. (Or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard) 
 
25) County Employee Appointment 
 Title:    County Administrator Officer 
 Authority: California Government Codes 54957 
 No reportable action was taken. File #235.6 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

     The vote of each member of the Board of Supervisors upon each matter at the 
foregoing meeting, unless otherwise stated, was as follows: 
 
 AYES:  SUPERVISORS: Botelho, De La Cruz, Rivas, Barrios, Muenzer 
 NOES: SUPERVISORS: None 
 ABSENT: SUPERVISORS: None 
 
     There being no further business the Board adjourned at 3:17 p.m. to August 20, 
2013 at 9:00 a.m. 
 
      ANTHONY BOTELHO, CHAIRMAN 
      San Benito County Board of Supervisors 
ATTEST: 
Denise R. Thome, Clerk of the Board 


	County Administration Building – Board of Supervisors Chambers, 481 Fourth Street, Hollister, California
	REGULAR MEETING
	AUGUST 6, 2013
	ACTION MINUTES


